
EDGERTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL, 404 EAST NELSON STREET 
February 10, 2022 

7:00 P.M. 
 

Call to Order 
1. Roll Call  ____ Roberts ____ Longanecker ____ Lewis ____ Brown  

  ____ Beem ____ Stambaugh 
2. Welcome 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Approve Minutes from January 27, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting 
5. Approve the Resolved Matter of a Dangerous and Unfit Structure Existing at 502 E. 2nd 

Street, in the City of Edgerton, Johnson County, Kansas 
 
Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 

 
Regular Agenda 
6. Declaration. At this time Council members may declare any conflict or communication they 

have had that might influence their ability to impartially consider today’s issues. 
 

7. Public Comments. Persons who wish to address the City Council regarding items on the 
agenda may do so when called upon by the Mayor. Comments on items not on the agenda, 
personnel matters or matters pending before court/other outside tribunals are not 
permitted. Please notify the City Clerk if you wish to speak by signing in at the meeting. 
Speakers must provide their name and address for the record and are limited to three (3) 
minutes. Any presentation is for informational purposes only. No action will be taken.  

 
Business Requiring Action 
 
8. Report by the City Administrator 

• 4th Quarter Financial Report 
 
9. Report by the Mayor 
 
10. Future Meeting Reminders:  

• February 24th: City Council Meeting – 7:00PM  
• March 8th: Planning Commission – 7:00PM  
• March 10th: City Council Meeting – 7:00PM 
• March 24th: City Council Meeting – 7:00PM  

 
11. CONSIDER RECESSING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75- 

4319(B)(2) FOR CONSULTATION WITH AN ATTORNEY DEEMED PRIVILEGED IN 
THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP TO INCLUDE CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR FOR THE PURPOSES OF CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS 



 
Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 
 

 
12. Adjourn Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 

 
 
 
 

EV
EN

TS
 

February 16th: Senior Lunch and BINGO 
February 17th: 2022 State of the City 
February 21st: City Offices Closed for Presidents Day  
February 26th: Wonderland Escape Room  
March 12th: Puzzle Squabble  
March 14th: Ice Cream Cone Bird Feeders & Ice Cream Cone Cupcakes 
March 17th: Leprechaun Hunt 
March 30th: Giant Paper Flower Peonies  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

City of Edgerton, Kansas 
Minutes of City Council Regular Session 

January 27, 2022 
 

A Regular Session of the City Council (the Council) was held in the Edgerton City 
Hall, 404 E. Nelson, Edgerton, Kansas on January 27, 2022. The meeting convened 
at 7:00 PM with Mayor Roberts presiding. 

 
1. ROLL CALL 

Clay Longanecker  present  
Josh Lewis  present 
Josh Beem  present 
Jody Brown  present 
Josie Stambaugh present 
 
With a quorum present, the meeting commenced. 

 
Staff in attendance: Public Works Director, Dan Merkh 

City Attorney, Lee Hendricks 
City Clerk, Alexandria Clower 
 

Staff via videoconference: Finance Director, Karen Kindle  
Development Services Director, Katy Crow 
CIP Manager, Brian Stanley 
Accountant, Justin Vermillion 
Marketing & Communications Manager, Kara Banks 
 

 
2. WELCOME  

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Approve Minutes from January 13, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting 

 
With no questions or comments on the consent agenda, Mayor Roberts requested motion to 
approve the minutes from January 13, 2022. 
 
Councilmember Beem moved to approve the minutes, seconded by Councilmember 
Longanecker. The minutes were approved, 5-0. 
 
Regular Agenda 
5. Declaration. There were no declarations made by the Governing Body.  

 



Edgerton City Council 
Regular Session 
January 13, 2022 
Page 2 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

6. Public Comments. There were no public comments made.  
 

7. Report. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Final Rule. 
 
Mr. Hendricks stated the City received the first of two tranches of funds last July under the 
American Rescue Plan Act.  The next payment will be in July 2022. He stated ARPA funds had 
strict uses when first released, specifically for water, sewer and broadband projects. He stated 
it was highly regulated to ensure use of the funds fell within those categories and this would 
have been substantial work for staff. He stated the Final Rule issued by the Department of 
Treasury changed how the funds can function. For all entities that received $10 million or less, 
the entirety of those funds can be categorized as revenue loss, regardless if revenue was truly 
lost. He stated it is now a “no look” deal with few reporting requirements. The funds still need 
to be kept in a different account, but the key element is any entity who received less than $10 
million can use these funds for any items that the jurisdiction spends general dollars on. He 
stated this is a game changer for the city and opens up a broad spectrum of use for the city 
without all the paperwork for staff. He stated the time limit to spend remains the same, by the 
end of 2026. 
 
Ms. Kindle stated she would add that even though we have a broader scope of potential 
projects on which to use the money, it is still subject to certain rules. She stated in June of 
2021, the Council approved certain documents related to ARPA, including the Award Terms and 
Conditions which references various federal regulations, such as procurement guidelines, audit 
requirements, etc. She stated also approved were the Assurances of Compliance with Civil 
Rights Requirements which says the City will comply with specific provisions related to civil 
rights. She stated the Final Rule requires the City to report annually by April 30th with the first 
report being due in 2022. She stated staff is reviewing guidance and determining the best one-
time use of the funds. She stated staff will bring back options to the Governing Body for final 
decision and approval. She stated the city has received half of the total allotment, in the 
amount of $135,322.29 and anticipate receiving the remaining dollars in July 2022. 
 
Mayor Roberts stated he believes this is good for us and many cities.  
 
There were no further comments or questions made.  
 
Business Requiring Action 
 
8. Report by the City Administrator 

• 502 E 2nd St. Update 
Ms. Crow addressed the Council. She stated she hopes this to be the final report of this kind on 
502 E 2nd St. She stated when the process first began on this property it was in poor condition 
structurally and represented a significant eyesore for neighbors. She stated staff began working 
through the process to bring a resolution declaring the property a dangerous and unsafe 
structure. She stated since that initial action was taken in 2020, the current property owner has 
resolved the exterior concerns. She stated there has not been any progress made since 
November on the inside of the home as they are still waiting on HVAC and plumbing, which is 



Edgerton City Council 
Regular Session 
January 13, 2022 
Page 3 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

behind due to shipment delays of materials. She stated the exterior of the home is airtight and 
within code compliance standards with door and windows being intact.  
 
She stated at this time, the owner has been notified that building materials cannot be kept on 
site when work is not occurring. Additionally, there has not been a formal building inspection 
since July 2021, making the currently issued building permit null and void because work has not 
progressed to the point of the next required inspection within 180 days from date of permit 
issuance or last inspection. She stated before work can resume, a new permit must be 
obtained. The homeowner has stated they intend to obtain a new permit at the beginning of 
February.  
 
She stated staff has discussed with the City Attorney regarding the resolution of this item and if 
the City Council agrees that the property is in satisfactory condition, a memo confirming that 
the building is no longer a dangerous and unsafe structure will be placed on the February 10, 
2022 Consent Agenda. She stated staff would continue to monitor the property for routine code 
violations and would ensure that an active building permit is secured prior to any future activity 
occurring.  
 
Councilmember Longanecker asked if anything has happened on the inside as far as rough-in 
work.  
 
Ms. Crow stated the floor is complete with boards and joists, there is no sheet rock while they 
homeowners are waiting on the HVAC and plumbing, but the house does have all windows and 
doors.  
 
Mayor Roberts asked for the wording designating a structure dangerous and unfit per the City 
Code.  
 
Mr. Hendricks referenced the Edgerton Municipal Code, Article 4, Section 401, which states the 
following: 
  

4-401. PURPOSE. The governing body of the City of Edgerton has found that there exist 
within the corporate limits of the city structures which are unfit for human use or habitation 
because of dilapidation, defects increasing the hazards of fire or accidents, structural defects 
or other conditions which render such structures unsafe, unsanitary or otherwise inimical to 
the general welfare of the city, or conditions which provide a general blight upon the 
neighborhood or surrounding properties. It is hereby deemed necessary by the governing 
body to require or cause the repair, closing or demolition or removal of such structures as 
provided in this article. (K.S.A. 12-1751; Code 1984)  

 
He stated from what he sees, and why his recommendation is that this portion be resolved, is 
that this is based more on an exterior matter. He stated there are instances when a fire occurs 
that the City would be more involved on the interior of a home, but this is not the case. He 
stated now at this time, the hammer the city has is the occupancy permit issuance.  
 



Edgerton City Council 
Regular Session 
January 13, 2022 
Page 4 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Mr. Crow stated there have not been enough inspections. Until someone can live there and that 
is the intention of the homeowner to do so, they’d have to go through inspection processes to 
obtain a final certificate of occupancy. To do this, they would have to obtain a building permit, 
complete inspections related that are to the IRC standards, and pay associated fees for such 
permit.  
 
Mayor Roberts stated it is his recommendation that the city remove the “dangerous and unfit 
structure” title from this house. He stated it no longer meets the definition per the city code.  
 
Mr. Hendricks stated this is correct, they are in compliance. He stated the owners have been 
very willing to work with the city and will continue to provide updates. He stated this has been 
a real success story.  
 
Mayor Roberts stated he is comfortable with staff providing a memo at the next council meeting 
and moving forward.  
 
All members of the Governing Body were in favor of this approach.  
 
There were no further questions or comments.  
 

• COVID Impacts to City Operations 
Mr. Merkh addressed the council. He stated the City continues to monitor the guidance issued 
by various levels of government agencies for the most up to date information regarding COVID-
19. He stated the health and safety of this community and the employees who work here are 
the top priority as staff continues to provide critical services to citizens of Edgerton. 
 
He stated the memo provided to council summarizes some of the major impacts the recent 
surge is having on city operations. He stated as this is a rapidly evolving situation, the city will 
continue to monitor guidance and requirements from our public health partners.  
 
He stated the Mayor issued two local executive orders which canceled or postponed all city-
sponsored events and suspended Community Hall rentals through January 31st. He stated on 
January 27th, the Mayor extended the local order to cancel or postpone events through 
February 18th and continued suspensions of Community Hall rentals through February 28th.  
 
He stated the city has instituted changes amongst staff to mitigate and minimize the spread as 
much as possible. He stated these changes include testing and quarantining based on the CDC 
guidelines, cleaning and disinfecting workstations, social distancing, work in place measures, 
and a mask requirement for all staff while indoors in city facilities. He stated staff continues to 
work hard through the latest surge of positive cases to minimize any disruption of the critical 
services provided to the community.  
 
He stated there have been several impacts to projects with supply chain issues and staffing 
shortages across all industries, leading to delays in city projects. He stated these impacts 
include: lead times in truck and mower deliveries, brine and salt delivery delays, and staffing 
shortages across all companies. He stated the 207th Street Grade Separation project has had a 



Edgerton City Council 
Regular Session 
January 13, 2022 
Page 5 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

couple setbacks, including delays for the glass beads needed to stripe the roadways, the light 
poles which were ordered in March 2021 are now not expected to arrive until later this year and 
because of staffing shortages with the contracting companies, loss of workdays have occurred. 
He stated the Greenspace project has also seen some impacts including a design team forced to 
interview virtually due to exposures. He stated the initial start date for the 7th & Nelson Sanitary 
Sewer Project was postponed due to staffing issues and shortages amongst many 
subcontractors.  
 
He stated these impacts are felt throughout each step of any process at the city.  He added 
there have been and will continue to be delays that occur, but staff has and will continue to 
work diligently to minimize all impacts to critical services.  
 
Mayor Roberts stated he cannot stress enough that within the city, people wear multiple hats 
and have had to do so even more lately. He stated he appreciates all staff and their willingness 
to step up whenever and wherever needed.  
 
There were no further comments or questions.  
 
9. Report by the Mayor 
 
Mayor Roberts stated as Mr. Merkh mentioned, he extended the Executive Order until at least 
February 18th. He stated community groups are still able to meet, such as Frontier Days and Girl 
Scouts meetings. He stated it will be up to the Senior Lunch Committee if they want to meet on 
the 16th of February for their monthly lunch or if they want to cancel for another month to 
evaluate the numbers of COVID.   
 
10. Future Meeting Reminders:  

• February 8th: Planning Commission – 7:00PM  
• February 10th: City Council Meeting – 7:00PM  
• February 24th: City Council Meeting – 7:00PM  
• March 8th: Planning Commission – 7:00PM  
• March 10th: City Council Meeting – 7:00PM 
• March 24th: City Council Meeting – 7:00PM  

 
11. Adjourn  

 
Councilmember Longanecker moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Beem. All in 
favor. The meeting was adjourned at 7:26 PM.  
 
Submitted by Alexandria Clower, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: February 10, 2022 
 
Department: Community Development 

 
Background/Description of Item:  
On July 22, 2021, the City of Edgerton Governing Body adopted Resolution 07-22-21A which 
provided a deadline of February 24, 2022 for the structure at 502 E. 2nd Street, Edgerton, 
Kansas to be restored to a condition in which it was no longer considered dilapidated, unsafe, 
unsanitary or a general blight upon the neighborhood or surrounding properties. 
 
The current owner has resolved all of the exterior concerns which brought about the initial 
resolution (Resolution 10-22-2020A) in October 2020. All of the trash and debris have been 
removed from the site including the camping trailer. At this time, the structure appears to be 
airtight with all doors and windows intact. 
 
As was discussed by the Governing Body at the City Council meeting on January 27, 2022, the 
structure at 502 E. 2nd Street is no longer deemed a dangerous and unfit structure pursuant to 
Chapter IV, Article 4, Section 4-407 and this matter is considered resolved. 
 
City staff will continue to monitor the property for routine code violations and will ensure that 
an active building permit is secured prior to any future activity occurring onsite. In addition, a 
Certificate of Occupancy will not be issued prior to the residence undergoing all necessary 
building inspections to deem it in compliance with the adopted building codes of the City of 
Edgerton. 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s):  – Edgerton City Code Chapter IV, Article 4 

 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
 
Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
 
Finance Director Approval: N/A 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolved the Matter of a Dangerous and Unfit 
Structure Existing at 502 E. 2nd Street, in the City of Edgerton, Johnson 
County, Kansas. 



 
 

 
 
Prepared by: Katy Crow, Development Services Director 
  
 

Recommendation: Consider Resolved the Matter of a Dangerous and 
Unfit Structure Existing at 502 E. 2nd Street, in the City of Edgerton, 
Johnson County, Kansas. 



YTD 2021 % 2021
Actual Budget Used Remaining Estimate

Revenues:
Ad Valorem Tax 2,081,360$      2,119,686$        98.2% (38,326)$           2,119,686$        
Delinquent Tax 1,460$            -$                  n/a 1,460$              480$                 
Motor Vehicle Tax 53,313$           52,830$             100.9% 483$                 52,830$             
Recreational Vehicle Tax 916$               835$                 109.7% 81$                  835$                 
16/20M Vehicle Tax 598$               375$                 159.5% 223$                 375$                 
Local Alcoholic Liquor Tax 8,156$            2,780$               293.4% 5,376$              5,000$               
City 1% Use Tax 253,200$         182,000$           139.1% 71,200$            200,000$           
County Use Tax 112,556$         70,000$             160.8% 42,556$            100,000$           
City 1% Sales Tax 523,941$         471,000$           111.2% 52,941$            485,000$           
County Sales Tax 366,045$         322,000$           113.7% 44,045$            375,000$           
Franchise Tax 199,933$         110,000$           181.8% 89,933$            180,000$           
Licenses & Permits 242,452$         321,000$           75.5% (78,548)$           241,000$           
Charges for Services 115,272$         118,000$           97.7% (2,728)$             93,700$             
Fines & Forfeitures 121,756$         30,000$             405.9% 91,756$            75,000$             
Miscellaneous 9,070$            -$                  n/a 9,070$              7,800$               
Investment Income 6,477$            17,000$             38.1% (10,523)$           5,000$               

Total Revenue 4,096,505$      3,817,506$        107.3% 278,999$           3,941,706$        

Expenditures:
General Government 882,430$         983,479$           89.7% 101,049$           953,975$           
Law Enforcement 543,315$         507,043$           107.2% (36,272)$           502,281$           
Public Works 527,356$         597,835$           88.2% 70,479$            532,300$           
Parks 224,318$         264,727$           84.7% 40,409$            256,785$           
Facilities 101,252$         126,325$           80.2% 25,073$            122,535$           
Fleet Maintenance 52,356$           54,200$             96.6% 1,844$              52,574$             
Community Development 423,422$         334,048$           126.8% (89,374)$           324,028$           
Economic Development 425,747$         502,200$           84.8% 76,453$            498,420$           
Information Technology 38,203$           49,587$             77.0% 11,384$            48,099$             
Employee Benefits 410,120$         556,209$           73.7% 146,089$           539,525$           

Total Expenditures 3,628,519$      3,975,653$        91.3% 347,134$           3,830,522$        

Revenues Over(Under) Expenditures: 467,986$       (158,147)$        111,184$         

Other Sources & Uses:
Transfers from Other funds:

Transfer from Capital Projects Fund 31,521$           -$                  n/a (31,521)$           10,500$             
Transfers to Other Funds:

Transfer to Equipment Reserve Fund-General 126,775$         125,000$           101.4% (1,775)$             125,000$           
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 253,000$         66,500$             380.5% (186,500)$         111,500$           

Total Other Sources & Uses (348,254)$        (191,500)$          181.9% 156,754$           (226,000)$          

Beginning Fund Balance 1,978,603$      1,582,699$        1,978,603$        
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 1,233,052$      1,863,787$      
Unaudited Ending Fund Balance 2,098,335$    

Reserve Required
17% of 2021 budgeted expenditures 675,861$         
25% of 2021 budgeted expenditures 993,913$         

Budget Authority
2021 Budget Authority 5,400,205$      
Remaining 2021 Budget Authority 1,391,911$      
% of Budget Authority Used 74.2%

City of Edgerton - 4th Quarter 2021 Report
General Fund (Unaudited)

https://edgertonks.sharepoint.com/Finance/Financial Reports/2021/4th Qtr 2021/4th Quarter Report 2021



YTD 2021 % 2021
Actual Budget Used Remaining Estimate

Revenues:
Charges for Services 460,687$          482,450$             95.5% (21,763)$          460,233$          
Fines & Forfeitures 22,231$           20,000$               111.2% 2,231$             20,000$            
Miscellaneous 275$                -$                    n/a 275$                -$                 
Investment Income 440$                2,500$                 17.6% (2,060)$            2,500$             

Total Revenue 483,633$          504,950$             95.8% (21,317)$          482,733$          

Expenditures:
Fleet Maintenance 3,516$             5,700$                 61.7% 2,184$             5,415$             
Information Technology 23,982$           25,379$               94.5% 1,397$             24,110$            
Production 158,188$          175,000$             90.4% 16,812$            166,250$          
Distribution 45,104$           54,130$               83.3% 9,026$             51,424$            
Administrative-Water 124,389$          132,715$             93.7% 8,326$             126,082$          
Employee Benefits 32,670$           35,143$               93.0% 2,473$             33,385$            
Debt Service 97,346$           97,349$               100.0% 3$                    97,349$            

Total Expenditures 485,195$          525,416$             92.3% 40,221$            504,015$          

Revenues Over(Under) Expenditures: (1,562)$          (20,466)$           (21,282)$        

Other Sources & Uses:
Transfers from Other funds:

Transfer from Water Reserve Fund -$                 -$                    n/a -$                 -$                 
Transfers to Other Funds:

Transfer to Equipment Reserve Fund-Water -$                 -$                    n/a -$                 -$                 
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 27,500$           -$                    n/a (27,500)$          -$                 

Total Other Sources & Uses (27,500)$          -$                    n/a -$                 

Beginning Fund Balance 197,784$          225,037$             197,784$          
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 204,571$           176,502$        
Unaudited Ending Fund Balance 168,722$       

Reserve Required
17% of 2021 budgeted expenditures 89,231$           
25% of 2021 budgeted expenditures 131,354$          

Budget Authority
2021 Budget Authority 729,987$          
Remaining 2021 Budget Authority 217,292$          
% of Budget Authority Used 70.2%

City of Edgerton - 4th Quarter 2021 Report
Water Fund (Unaudited)

https://edgertonks.sharepoint.com/Finance/Financial Reports/2021/4th Qtr 2021/4th Quarter Report 2021



YTD 2021 % 2021
Actual Budget Used Remaining Estimate

Revenues:
Charges for Services 780,630$             682,408$          114.4% 98,222$          723,522$        
Licenses & Permits 200$                   -$                 n/a 200$              -$               
Miscellaneous -$                   -$                 n/a -$               -$               
Investment Income 2,545$                3,500$              72.7% (955)$             3,500$            

Total Revenue 783,375$             685,908$          114.2% 97,467$          727,022$        

Expenditures:
Fleet Maintenance 3,546$                5,700$              62.2% 2,154$            5,700$            
Information Technology 30,142$              25,499$            118.2% (4,643)$          25,499$          
Treatment Plant 155,962$             198,330$          78.6% 42,368$          198,330$        
Sewer Line Maintenance 3,244$                10,700$            30.3% 7,456$            10,700$          
Lift Stations/Vaults 24,213$              29,967$            80.8% 5,754$            29,967$          
Administrative-Sewer 191,118$             214,858$          89.0% 23,740$          214,858$        
Employee Benefits 51,291$              61,513$            83.4% 10,222$          61,513$          
Debt Service 94,438$              94,438$            100.0% -$               94,438$          

Total Expenditures 553,954$             641,005$          86.4% 87,051$          641,005$        

Revenues Over(Under) Expenditures: 229,421$           44,903$          86,017$        

Other Sources & Uses
Transfers from Other Funds:

Transfer from Sewer Reserve Fund -$                   -$                 -$               -$               
Transfers to Other Funds:

Transfer to Equipment Reserve Fund-Sewer 53,640$              50,000$            n/a (3,640)$          50,000$          
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 118,000$             118,000$          n/a -$               118,000$        

Total Other Sources & Uses (171,640)$           (168,000)$         102.2% 3,640$            (168,000)$       

Beginning Fund Balance 520,138$             413,698$          520,138$        
Estimated Ending Fund Balance 290,601$        438,155$      
Unaudited Ending Fund Balance 577,919$           

Reserve Required
17% of 2021 budgeted expenditures 108,971$             
25% of 2021 budgeted expenditures 160,251$             

Budget Authority
2021 Budget Authority 1,099,606$          
Remaining 2021 Budget Authority 374,012$             
% of Budget Authority Used 66.0%

City of Edgerton - 4th Quarter 2021 Report
Sewer Fund (Unaudited)

https://edgertonks.sharepoint.com/Finance/Financial Reports/2021/4th Qtr 2021/4th Quarter Report 2021


	Agenda 02.10.2022
	04_Minutes 01-27-2022
	05_502 E 2nd Street - Memo to Council
	08_4th Quarter Financial Report 2021

